MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
GOLDSBORO HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION
JANUARY 7, 2025

The Goldsboro Historic District Commission of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in

Regular Session in the Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:30 p.m.
on January 7, 2025,

Present: Mr. Fritz Knack, Presiding
Mr. John Peacock, Vice Chair
Mr. Richard Best
Mr. Terry Cottle
Ms. Nancy Delia
Mr. David Archibald

Ms. Manning Musgrave (ALT)
Mr. Derek Roche (ALT)

Also Present: Paul Saylors, Planner I/Preservation Planner
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney
Holly Jones, Planning Executive Assistant

Absent: Ms. Judith McMillen

Mr. Knack began the meeting at 5:30 p.m.

Swearing in of New Members
Holly Jones, Planning Executive Assistant, swore in the members that were appointed by the City

Council at their December 16, 2024 meeting to the Commission; Ms. Manning Musgrave and Mr. Derek
Roche.

Vote on New Chair and Vice-Chair

Mr. Cottle made a motion to reappoint Mr. Fritz Knack as Chair of the Commission. The motion
was seconded by Ms. Delia and unanimously carried.

Mr. Cottle made a motion to appoint Mr. John Peacock as Vice Chair of the Commission. The
motion was seconded by Mr. Best and unanimously carried.

Approval of Minutes

Mr. Archibald made a motion to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 3, 2024.
The motion was seconded by Mr. Cottle and unanimously carried.

New Business
Ms. Delia made a motion to recuse Mr. Fritz Knack, due to his being on the Historical Association
Board of Directors. The motion was seconded by Mr. Cottle and unanimously carried. Mr. Knack left his

seat and sat in the public viewing area, and Mr. Peacock presided over the meeting until voting concluded
on the following item.

‘CA-08-24 Wayne County Historical Association: The applicant is requesting an After-the-Fact
Certificate of Appropriateness for a permit required for exterior changes to the building that was
conducted without prior approval. 116 N. William Street is currently zoned within the Central Business
District (CBD). The property is located within the City of Goldsboro’s Local Historic District. The
property considered for approval is located at the southeast corner of North William Street and East
Mulberry Street. The property is further identified as NCPIN# 3509-05-2912.

The item was presented by Paul Saylors, Planner I/Preservation Planner.

Mr. Peacock opened the public hearing. The following people spoke after being properly sworn in:

10f4



1.

David Weil. Stated that he should have come in for approval, but the passing of time made
him forget about the need to do so. He had been speaking to the City about the parking lot,
and forgot to address the other improvements needed, such as the door and windows, due to
how long the approvals and funding took for that project. He asked for forgiveness and
stated that if the Commission wanted the door replaced, he would personally take care of it,
but it was much improved over the old one and requested an after the fact approval.

Charles Gaylor HI, historic district homeowner. Stated that the guidelines are the bedrock
for the HDC. He does not want to see anything happen that might jeopardize the investment
tax credits, and the people coming to Goldsboro because of it. He respects and is supportive
of the Historical Association, but feels that the building and the door replacement are too
visible of a change to be approved without causing a problem.

Tom Anderson, Wayne County Historical Association Board Member. Stated he was also
not aware of some of the processes, and appreciated the City for allowing them to come
together and discuss things. They have spent a lot of money and time to refurbish the
building back to its original glory. He stated that there is newer technology since the
building was originally built, for energy, safety, and security. The old door could easily be
jiggled and opened, wind and air came in where it did not seal well, and wheelchairs could
not exit in an emergency. The new door is ADA to accommodate wheelchairs, and they
tried to duplicate the original top transom window on the side of the new door.

Mr. Best asked if they had looked at going back with french doors when they replaced it.
Mr. Anderson stated that the problem with the french door is the size of the opening to
allow for the egress of wheelchairs, especially in an emergency.

Ms. Delia asked if there was a reason they chose the materials the doors are made of; why
they did not want to use wood. Mr. Anderson stated that the metal door secures better to
protect the priceless artifacts inside; the metal door is also better for longevity, safety, and a
better seal. He stated that a wooden door that provided the same seal and security would
have been much more expensive and unaffordable for their limited budget.

Mr. Peacock asked if anything could be added to the bottom portion of the door, such as a
trim, to give it more of a historical look and take away some of the commercial bareness.
Mr. Anderson stated that they have spoken to Convenient Glass about adding a trim or false
panels to replicate a Jeffersonian look. He stated that if they can keep the door, that is a
recommendation he would want to do.

Mr. Archibald asked where the ramp was located in the picture of the building. Mr.
Anderson pointed to picture, stating that it was behind the bushes.

Mr. Peacock asked if there were any ADA or fire code requirements that led them to this
door. Mr. Anderson stated that the fire marshals never stated there was a problem, but there
had been problems with wheelchairs getting through before, and they had to undo the doors
to let people in; this is why they went with one 42 door. Mr. Peacock asked if the old doors
swung in or out. Mr. Anderson stated that they swung out, and the new one does as well.

Mr. Cottle asked Mr. Gaylor if his concern was that if the Commission approved this, then
it could mess up getting tax credits down the road. Mr. Gaylor stated that if the guidelines
are not followed, the historic district might still be there, but have no meaning because you
will not be able to get the tax credits.

Jennifer Eisenhower, Treasurer for the Wayne County Historical Association Board. Spoke
about a home that was recently sold in the historic district, and was broken into numerous
times by the door being kicked in and the windows being broken. She stated that the old
original doors and windows cannot always hold up to today’s society. She has seen visitors
come in though the new door with their wheelchairs without having to ask for assistance.

Mr. Best asked if they could guarantee security if they went back with french doors. Ms.
Eisenhower stated they could not. Mr. Best stated they should have the locks at the top and
floor. Ms. Eisenhower stated that it would still not allow for those in wheelchairs to access
the building without asking for assistance.

20f4



Ms. Eisenhower stated that she was not really for either side, she understood both sides of it.
She knows they should have asked permission, and there may be a better option; she agreed
with adding trim to try and make it look better. She continued, stating that it would be a
great burden on the museum to try and replace the door again due to their limited funding.

Ms. Delia asked if the museum board discussed the guidelines for the historic district. Ms.
Eisenhower stated that she had just become the Treasurer and had not been involved at the
time. Mr. Anderson stated that they had not been aware of some of the guidelines for that
sort of thing, but they discussed the type of door they wanted for the traffic usually received.

Ms. Delia asked if they had considered a more secure screen door or storm door, rather than
removing or replacing the doors that were there. Mr. Anderson stated that they had not
considered it, and there would still be the problem of the narrow opening.

No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed.

Mr. Peacock asked what the staffing situation was when the door was installed. Mr. Saylors stated
that he came on board in May, and this occurred in June, so he had just come on board.

Mr. Best made a motion to deny the request, which was seconded by Ms. Delia. Mr. Peacock read
the following denial statement:

The Historic District Commission finds the proposal to be incongruous with the guidelines and
standards outlined in the Design Guidelines for Downtown Goldsboro.

Mr. Peacock called for a vote on the motion. Mr. Archibald, Mr. Best, and Ms. Delia voted in favor
of the motion. Mr. Cottle voted against the motion and Mr. Peacock abstained.

Mr. Lawrence informed the Commission that due to there being a disqualified member, the
alternate members could vote to determine if there would be a majority in favor of a motion. He stated
that the bylaws do not address the situation, but NCGS 160D does.

Mr. Peacock called for the vote again, with that information in mind. Mr. Archibald, Mr. Best, Ms.
Delia, Mr. Roche, and Ms. Musgrave voted in favor of the motion. Mr. Cottle voted against the motion
and Mr. Peacock abstained.

Mr. Lawrence stated that NCGS 160D-406(i) addresses voting and counting an alternates vote
when there is a disqualified member.

Only four votes in favor were needed for the motion to pass. Including the alternate members, the
motion received five votes in favor, so by a vote of 5:1:1 the motion to approve the Denial Statement
passed, and the request was denied; the Wayne County Historical Association will not receive their
Certificate of Appropriateness.

Mr. Peacock stated that he did not raise his hand, he has looked at the building and the work that
has been done to restore and preserve the building; it is like the Parthenon. He agreed that the french
doors were a security issue and defeated the ADA code to allow a handicap person to have independent
access, but was disappointed that more effort was not made to make the door less plain.

Mr. Knack returned to his seat and presided over the remainder of the meeting.

CA-01-25 131 E. Walnut Street: The applicant is requesting an After-the-Fact Certificate of
Appropriateness for a permit required for changes to the building that was conducted without prior
approval. 131 E. Walnut Street is within the Central Business District (CBD) and the Local Historic
District. The property considered for approval is located on the north side of East Walnut Street and is
further identified as NCPIN# 2599-95-3759.

The item was presented by Paul Saylors, Planner I/Preservation Planner.

Mr. Knack asked for confirmation that painting was not addressed in the guidelines, specifically
referring to a large blue building. Mr. Saylors confirmed that painting is not addressed, and that he was
not sure about the building.

30f4



Mr. Knack opened the public hearing. The following person spoke after being properly sworn in:

1. Rob Phillips, applicant and owner of the building. He apologized for not applying before,
but he did not think about getting a Certificate of Appropriateness for painting since
buildings seem to be painted all the time. He stated that he has applied for certificates
before for windows on his other buildings, and that he will be more careful in the future.

No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed.

Mr. Cottle asked if Mr. Saylors thought painting the buildings was okay, and that if someone
wanted to paint in the future, it would be the same for them as in this case. Mr. Saylors stated that he did
not say he agreed with painting the buildings. He continued, stating that this building had never been
painted, older bricks need to breathe and paint seals the brick, so it depends on the age of the brick how
well or if the paint will stick.

Mr. Peacock asked if the Commission could recommend that the design guidelines be amended to
address painting. Mr. Lawrence stated that right now they had to address what was on the books with the
guidelines where they are; any change to the guidelines had to go to the City Council for adoption. Mr.
Saylors stated amending the guidelines was part of the Commissions job.

Mr. Peacock made a motion to go with the staff recommendation to approve the request. The
motion was seconded by Mr. Cottle and unanimously carried.

Other Business

Mr. Peacock reiterated the need to address painted brick. Mr. Knack asked him if he would be
interested in chairing a committee to present updated guidelines and other changes to City Council; Mr.
Peacock politely refused.

Mr. Cottle asked if these types of requests had to come before the Commission, could such decisions
not be made a staff level. Mr. Saylors stated that the guidelines state that if a building has never been
painted, it is considered ‘major work” and must come before the Commission. He continued, stating that
the Commission could make such changes; the first step is to make a list of what changes need to be made.

Mr. Best stated that he noticed something at every other meeting; that many in the historic district
have said they do not know there are guidelines. He asked if a mailing could be done to those in the
historic district to let them know. Mr. Saylors stated that the financial aspect was always the problem. Mr.
Peacock and Mr. Archibald suggested asking the Mayor to include something in the newsletter that went
to all citizens. Ms. Delia asked if just a simple letter could be sent, rather than the entire guidelines; Mr.
Best concurred. Mr. Saylors stated that he had previously been informed that such letters would need to
be sent certified, at over eight dollars each. Mr. Knack stated that he would continue to work on this.

Mr. Saylors informed the Commission that he had updated the application recently which could be
seen in the member notebooks and was online. He also agreed that a mailing would be a great idea. Mr.
Archibald asked if homeowners could call him. Mr. Saylors stated that they could call or email him directly.
He stated that the UDO, guidelines, and map of historic district could be found on the City’s website.

There being no further business, Mr. Knack asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr.
Archibald made the motion, and it was seconded by Mr. Cottle. The motion was unanimously carried, and
the meeting was adjourned at 7:05 p.m.

’_,-""'___?.— -
Fritz Knack
Chair

HollyJones /-~
Planning Executive Assistant

40of4



